GARDEN SUBURB INFANT SCHOOL

PARENT HANDBOOK



Contents

Welcome to our School

Ethos, Values and Vision

School Organisation

The Curriculum

- Assessment
- Parent/teacher meetings
- Children with additional learning needs
- Children who do not speak English
- Outings and visits

Assemblies and special celebrations

Parental Engagement and Communication

Attendance and Punctuality

Term Dates 2023-24

Pupil Welfare in School

Child Protection and Safeguarding

General Safety and Security

Food and Drink in School

Free School Meals and Pupil Premium

Childcare and After School Clubs

Uniform and Dress-Code

Parent Teacher Association (PTA)

Contact Details

Welcome to our School

You are warmly welcomed to the Garden Suburb Infant School community!

We are all very proud of our school and the school community. We believe it to be a happy and inclusive place where everyone is valued and respected. We hope that your child and family will enjoy being part of our school, and that during your time with us you will develop strong and lasting friendships within the school.

Clearly we can only achieve the best for our pupils by developing close co-operation between home and school, so we work hard to develop effective, supportive relationships with parents to support children's development.

In the following pages of this booklet you will find important information relating to uniform, lunch, attendance, welfare and much more. The booklet will also be available on the school website, along with other information that you will need throughout your child's time in the school.

We very much look forward to getting to know your child and you in the next weeks and months.

Sarah Sands Head Teacher

Ethos, Values and Vision

Garden Suburb Infant School is a happy and caring school in which everyone is valued and respected. We actively encourage children to be curious about the world and to have a positive attitude to learning, enabled by the skills we teach.

We all work together to provide a rich and stimulating environment with a wide range of learning opportunities available to each and every child.

We aim to develop all children to the best of their abilities and to help them grow into independent, confident and responsible individuals.

We want to make our School an inclusive place where the rich variety of cultures, experiences, languages and abilities that the children bring with them are valued and supported.

We work hard to develop effective partnerships with parents to support children's development, as we can only achieve the best for our pupils with close co-operation between home and school.

You can find our full Ethos, Values and Vision on our school website here.

School Organisation

Garden Suburb Infant School is a community school under the control of the London Borough of Barnet. We follow the National Curriculum and have regular inspections by Ofsted.

Children remain in our school for 3 years, starting in Reception Year and leaving at the end of Year 2

We have 9 classes (and each class has up to 30 children) named by colour as follows:

Reception Year (children 4-5 years)	Year One (children 5 -6 years)	Year Two (children 6 – 7 years)
Blue Class	Lilac Class	Orange Class
Green Class	Turquoise Class	Pink Class
Red Class	Yellow Class	Purple Class

Moving from one year to the next

Children automatically move from one year group to the next. You will be informed each July which class and teacher your child will be with during the next academic year.

On occasions, for very specific reasons such as balancing classes in terms of gender and languages, we will reorganise the classes at the end of Reception Year to make 3 new classes for Year One. We will always inform you in advance if this is going to happen and will explain the process in detail.

When your child is in Year Two, you will be informed about the process of moving to the Junior School. Children in the Infant School have priority for admission to the Junior School but an application will need to be made online through e-admissions.

The Curriculum

Children in Reception follow the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) Curriculum and children in Years One and Two follow Key Stage One (KS1) of the National Curriculum. All aspects of the curriculum are important and should support and extend children's learning, however, at Garden Suburb Infant School we attach particular importance to:

- *Personal, Social and Emotional learning* which enables children to develop their skills in being independent, co-operative, resilient, inventive and reflective.
- The development of effective *speaking and listening skills* as these will form the basis of all other learning.
- Children's *physical development* through a wide range of opportunities to develop and practise their physical skills
- Children's *creative development,* through music, drama, creative arts and access to enrichment activities, setting the children's learning into a background of rich cultural capital.
- The development of **secure academic skills**, supported by a comprehensive programme of interventions for children who need additional help.

Naturally, you will be very interested in what your child is learning and doing at school and how you can help them. We aim to keep you informed about the curriculum and what is going on in school in a variety of ways including:

- Our website, which has a detailed <u>CURRICULUM</u> area, as well as <u>LATEST NEWS</u> stories and a <u>GALLERY</u> (Please click to follow the links)
- Inviting you to curriculum information events for each year group when we explain the details of the curriculum on offer for that year.
- Providing Reading and Mathematics workshops to outline our approach, as well as giving ideas about how you can support your child at home.
- Year group newsletters which are circulated each half term giving specific details of the topics and objectives.
- Homework activities that enable you to follow up on activities we have been teaching in class.

<u>Assessment</u>

Teachers regularly assess children, in each curriculum area, to identify what progress they have made and what the next steps in their learning should be. These assessments generally happen during class activities and are a routine part of the school day.

Children in Reception are assessed against the Early Learning Goals set out in the Foundation Stage curriculum.

Children in Year One and Year Two are assessed in relation to Key Stage One of the National Curriculum.

Parent /teacher meetings

Of course you will want to be kept informed of how your child is doing at school so we schedule two parent meetings each year – one in November and one in February/March. We are also very happy to arrange to meet with you at other times, should this be necessary. Please talk to your child's teacher if you would like to arrange a meeting outside of these times.

You will receive a report in July of each year summarising your child's progress and attainment over the year.

Children with additional learning needs

Some children will need additional support in their learning for a number of reasons. We will always speak with parents if we have concerns about a child, and we will closely liaise about what support we can offer.

We have a Special Educational Needs Co-ordinator (SENCo) who has responsibility for ensuring that children with significant needs receive appropriate support. The SENCo is called Mrs Elia, and she can be contacted by email on senco@gsis.barnetmail.net or by telephoning the school office.

Children who do not speak English as a first language

We have a number of children who start in our school with little or no English. Clearly this can cause them (and you) some anxiety but our experience is that children will settle well and make friends quickly.

All children need a rich language environment at school, and this is a priority for us. Children will pick up English through their normal classroom interactions, but we also provide some additional small group support to help with vocabulary, grammar and confidence if needed. Please continue to speak and read to your child in their first language, as maintaining their fluency in their mother tongue will eventually support their learning in English.

Outings and Visits

During the course of the school year, children have the opportunity to participate in educational outings and visits, providing important opportunities to support and enrich the curriculum. Many of these are within walking distance e.g. the post office, shops, garden centre or Big Wood. When a visit is planned you will be informed through the **Year Group Newsletter**.

When your child joins the school we always ask your general permission for these local visits and this remains valid for their time with us.

When a visit is further away, usually involving travel by coach or bus, we will seek additional signed permission. Your child will not go on any visit without your prior permission. If you have any questions, please ask your child's teacher.

Assemblies and Special Celebrations

There are regular occasions throughout the week and the school year when we join together as a whole school. Parents are invited to join us on these occasions.

Birthday assembly: This is usually held on Tuesday of each week and involves the children who celebrate their birthdays that week (Sunday – Saturday). Children who have birthdays during the holiday period do not miss out, as we always include extra assemblies at the end of each term.

Please do not bring in any birthday 'treats' but if you would like to mark the event we have a selection of books which you can purchase for the classroom – please see Mrs Freeman or Ms Gonzalez with your child at the time of their birthday so they can choose a book for their class. In the coming year, we are hoping to set up an Amazon "Wish List" to make this process even easier to access.

Certificate assembly: This is a weekly event for children in KS1. It is held on Friday and celebrates the achievements of individual children throughout the school. Classes generally decide upon who will get the certificate each week, and it is usually for something very specific or for something that a child has been working hard to achieve. Over the year, each child will receive at least one certificate.

Religious Assemblies We like to celebrate the major religious festivals which are appropriate to our school community. We will let parents know through the newsletter if they are able to attend these assemblies, as we have limited capacity. Over the year we celebrate:

- Harvest Festival
- Christmas; Easter
- Rosh Hashanah; Hannukah; Passover
- Diwali
- Eid-al-Fitr
- Iranian New Year

Parents can take photographs of their children who are taking part in assemblies, but it is vital that all parents have signed the "Acceptable Use Agreement" and agree that any photographs or videos taken will not be used inappropriately, e.g. on social networking sites.

If taking photos or videos, please do so discretely and with consideration for other users of the space.

Parental Engagement and Communication

As a school we utilise online software packages to enable us to record information about our pupils, to communicate with parents and staff, and to facilitate booking appointments and making payments.

Parents are able to have access to three of these packages, Tapestry, ParentMail and Collins eBooks, to more fully engage in the school and the community. We strongly urge all parents to take advantage of all that the packages can offer:

Tapestry®

This is an online journal which is used throughout the school to log children's activities and to support assessment. We also use it as a means of communicating homework to you and your child, including sharing teaching videos, and enabling you to upload homework activities. During periods of school closure, Tapestry has been our vital means of delivering learning activities. Parents can also be given access so they can view and add to their child's journal – you will receive an activation email and you will need to verify your account to access your child's journal.

IRIS ParentMail®

It is very important that we have effective and efficient communication with you during your time with us. During the school year we need to contact parents for a wide range of reasons such as:

- An unexpected closure of the School
- Changes to scheduled events
- Routine curriculum information
- Routine weekly newsletters
- Information regarding PTA events
- Information regarding school trips etc.

We use an online system called IRIS ParentMail (PMX) and find this very effective.

We use text messaging to contact groups of parents (whole school/year group/class) on a range of issues such as emergency school closures, reminders of events etc.

We use email to send our regular weekly newsletters and other letters to the whole school or large groups of parents. This is environmentally friendly and cost effective for the school.

We also use the payment system within ParentMail for online payments by PayPal/credit/debit card, for example to make donations or pay for school trips. The school office does, of course, still accept cash. The school itself does not have access to

parents' bank account records, this is held securely by ParentMail. This system cannot be used to purchase uniform, or items under £5.

There is a free app for ParentMail on Android or iOS for easy access to:

- Messages (text and email) with notifications if you choose to allow them
- Parent Evening module to sign up for parent consultations
- Payment module for paying for trips and other items
- Events module to sign up for parent workshops and other events
- Forms module for permission forms / surveys

We enter your email and mobile number onto the ParentMail system. You will then receive all texts and emails from the school.

Once the School enters your details, you will automatically receive a message from ParentMail with a link so that you can verify your account. This will ensure that you can download and access the app, make payments and appointments and keep your details up to date.

Tapestry and ParentMail are registered with the Data Protection Registrar and are GDPR compliant. They guarantee that all information you provide will be kept private and will not be passed on to any other organisation.

Please note, once you have received your verification emails for Parentmail and Tapestry there is only a limited time to activate your account.

We advise parents to verify/activate your ParentMail and Tapestry accounts and download the mobile phone apps for both.

Big Cat Collins eBooks

We use this throughout the school to support our reading program in school. Each week children are allocated books by their class teacher, to read on an electronic device at home (this can be a PC, tablet or mobile phone – anything with internet access)

When children start this part of the curriculum, their log in details will be provided in the front of their reading books.

London Borough of Barnet

General information about the School can also be accessed via our website or the London Borough of Barnet website.

Emergency contact details

It is very important that we have accurate contact information relating to your child. Please ensure that you keep all contact details up to date and inform the Office of any changes. All details should be included in the Pupil Administration Form which is completed when your child joins the School.

Newsletters

We send out **weekly newsletters** to all parents, who have given consent, with up to date information on what has been happening that week, forthcoming events and other important information. Please read each week as this is a very useful way of keeping in touch!

You will also receive **half termly curriculum newsletters** which set out the topic and focused learning activities for the next half term. These will both normally be sent via ParentMail[®]

Website ~ <u>https://www.gardensuburbinfant.co.uk/</u>

Our School website is a great source of information for parents about school life. It contains curriculum information, policies, newsletters, a calendar of events and much, much more! Please do go and have a look to find out what the children have been up to or if you have any queries about life in our school. Further information about our website policy can be found in the section "General Safety and Security"

WhatsApp Groups

These are run by the parents, not the school, and can be an important means of building connections with other parents in the class, and arranging play dates, etc. It is helpful also for parents in the group to post little reminders about school activities and to enlist volunteers for school and PTA events.

Monthly Meetings with the Headteacher and PTA

Miss Sands holds a monthly meeting, usually at 9am on the first Friday of the month, which we encourage at least one parent from each class to attend (although everyone is welcome). We use this to respond to queries that have arisen through the WhatsApp group, and to consult with parents about school matters. Parents attending often feedback what was discussed to the wider group, through the WhatsApp group. Notification about these meetings will be included in the weekly newsletters.

Attendance and Punctuality

In Garden Suburb Infant School, we take children's attendance and punctuality very seriously.

Children who attend school regularly and arrive on time are much more likely to achieve well academically, both in primary and secondary school. They will benefit from all that school has to offer and develop important habits which will support them in their future working lives.

The Attendance and Punctuality of all pupils is very closely monitored by the Education Welfare Officer (EWO) from the London Borough of Barnet. Attendance statistics form part of your child's annual school report, which stays with them throughout their school career.

The School is also held accountable for pupils' attendance and punctuality, and our actions in relation to attendance and punctuality are also monitored.

We have two members of staff, Mrs Freeman and Ms Gonzalez who have responsibility for all matters relating to Pupil Welfare, Attendance and Punctuality. They monitor and process all issues relating to children's attendance and punctuality and they regularly liaise with the Head Teacher and the Educational Welfare Team in Barnet

If you have any concerns about any of the following procedures, please speak to Mrs Freeman or Ms Gonzalez or email them directly on <u>admin@gsis.barnetmail.net</u>.

Punctuality

Start of School Day

- School doors open at 8.45am each morning. Parents should say goodbye at the fenced off area so the children can go straight to their classrooms, unaccompanied.
- Registration is at 8.55am and children must be in class by then as this is the official start of the school day.

Late arrival

- Children arriving after 8.55am must be signed in to the late book by the person bringing them to school, and they are recorded as late and the time of arrival noted.
- Arrival after 9.30am is usually recorded as an unauthorised absence for the morning session, unless a valid reason is given and accepted by the Head Teacher.
- If you know that you will arrive later than 8.55am due to unforeseen circumstances (i.e. car break down, major travel disruption) please telephone the school and leave a message. We will pick it up but you will not receive a call back.

Appointments

- Please try to keep medical and other appointments out of school hours.
- If your child has an appointment during the school day which is unavoidable and will either be late coming to school or will be collected during the school day, please inform us in writing the day before the appointment (email to admin@gsis.barnetmail.net). We expect children to attend school either side of the appointment.
- We are required, by the Local Authority, to verify and monitor appointments during the school day, so **we will also need to see the appointment details** e.g. hospital appointment letters.
- Please do not take your child out of school without him/her being signed out by a member of staff.
- If you need to collect your child at lunchtime, please inform us in advance so we can advise you of the best time to arrive, so as not to disrupt their lunchtime meal.

End of Session/School Day

- Once children are full time, the normal school day ends at 3.15pm.
- Children are collected from the appropriate coloured area in the front playground. This is painted the same colour as their class and has the class name on it. Please ensure your child says goodbye to their teacher.
- You will be asked to complete a "Pick Up Arrangements" form at the start of each academic year to confirm who will be regularly collecting your child.
- If someone different to the adults on this list is collecting your child, you must email the school on admin@gsis.barnetmail.net to let us know by 3pm. We will not let your child go with anyone different, without prior authorisation from you.

Late pick up of children at end of school day

- Children not collected on time are brought back into school. The time they are collected is recorded and a valid reason must be given for the late collection. Late collections are monitored by the school and EWO.
- If you know you will be late due to unforeseen circumstances, telephone the school and give an estimated time of arrival so that your child doesn't get anxious.

Absence from school

We realise that there may be times when your child is unable to attend school due to illness or for other very specific reasons, and the following sets out the school procedures for attendance and how we deal with absence.

These procedures have been drawn up using instructions from the Department for Education and the Education Welfare Officer (EWO) from the London Borough of Barnet. Please make sure that you read them carefully so that you know what to do.

Absences due to illness

- If your child is not attending school, please telephone the school by 9.30am on the first day of absence stating the reason for their absence. Alternatively email the Pastoral Support team on <u>admin@gsis.barnetmail.net</u>. If your child is ill, please specify what is wrong with them (e.g. temperature, cough, cold, chicken pox) as we keep a track on illness trends
- Please call each day that your child is absent from school.
- If we have not been notified of a child's absence by 9.30am, the school will telephone the child's parent/carer.
- If we don't get a response by phone or email, the absence will be recorded as unauthorised.

Absence due to religious observance

• Please email <u>admin@gsis.barnetmail.net</u> in advance, with any requests for absence due to religious observance. Please note that only the actual religious day(s) can be authorised.

Absence during school day

• See 'Appointments' above.

Holidays/Absences

- Children of school age are expected to be at school for 190 days or 38 weeks of the year and you should not remove your child from school during term time for a holiday. Requests to do so will not normally be authorised, and may incur a fine.
- It is expected that families make holiday arrangements during the 14 weeks of school holidays so that children's education is not disrupted. The term dates are set out in this booklet and are also on our website <u>HERE</u>. We realise that holidays are less expensive during term time, but Government guidelines do not accept this as a valid reason for absence.

Requests for exceptional leave of absence

• In very exceptional circumstances permission may be sought from the Head Teacher for a child to be absent during term time.

- Such requests are considered on their own merits and by making the request you are agreeing to abide by the decision of the Head Teacher.
- At the time of making such a request, you must provide relevant information, including proof of the exceptional nature, and not make travel plans before you make the request.
- These requests should be made by emailing admin@gsis.barnetmail.net
- If your request is not authorised, your child must attend school, or the absence will be recorded as unauthorised and will be included in their end of year report.
- If permission is not sought before an absence, it will be recorded as unauthorised.
- Unauthorised absences may result in a Fixed Penalty Notice being served (see below)
- Failure to return to school on the expected date will result in the extra days being recorded as unauthorised absence, unless a valid reason is given and accepted by the Head teacher.
- If a child does not return after 10 days from the expected return date, without a valid reason being given for the continued absence, the school may remove them from the school roll.

Unauthorised Absences and Fixed Penalty Notices.

- If your child has a period of unauthorised absence during term time the Head Teacher may ask the Education Welfare Team in the London Borough of Barnet to issue a Fixed Penalty Notice.
- This is a fine of £60 per parent, per child. If the fine remains unpaid the amount increases to £120 per parent per child.
- Continued non payment will eventually result in the Educational Welfare Team beginning court proceedings which could result in a fine of £1000 per parent per child, plus legal costs.

Term Dates 2023 / 2024

AUTUMN TERM 2023

First Half:	Tuesday 5 th September – Friday 20 th October 2023
Second Half:	Tuesday 31 st October – Thursday 21 st December 2023

SPRING TERM 2024

First Half:	Tuesday 9 th January - Friday 9 th February 2024
Second Half:	Tuesday 20 th February – Thursday 28 th March 2024

SUMMER TERM 2024

First Half:	Monday 15 th April – Friday 24 th May 2024
Second Half:	Tuesday 4 th June – Wednesday 24 th July 2024

DATES THAT SCHOOL IS CLOSED TO PUPILS

Please note that holidays should only be booked within these periods

Autumn Half-Term Break:	Monday 23 rd October – Monday 30 th October
Christmas Holiday:	Friday 22 nd December – Monday 8 th January
Spring Half-Term Break:	Monday 12 th February – Monday 19 th February
Spring Break Holiday:	Friday 29 th March – Friday 12 th April
May Day Bank Holiday:	Monday 6 th May
Summer Half-Term Break:	Monday 27 th May – Monday 3 rd June

<u>INSET DAYS (School CLOSED for staff training days)</u> Monday 4th September 2023 Monday 30th October 2023 Monday 8th January 2024 Monday 19th February 2024 Monday 3rd June 2024

Pupil Welfare in School

We prioritise the health and well-being of children while they are with us in school. We have a range of policies relating to pupil welfare which are available on the school website <u>HERE</u>, or we can provide you with a copy if you wish.

It is important that you share with us all relevant information to help us ensure your child's health and well-being in school. All information is treated sensitively and confidentially as appropriate.

Allergies

If your child has any allergies, is asthmatic, or has any other chronic condition please complete the medical information form, before they start school if possible.

As some of the children in school have nut allergies we strive, as a precaution, to ensure that everyone in our school is "nut aware".

What you can do to help:

We ask that you do not send into school:

- Packets of nuts
- Peanut butter/Nutella sandwiches
- Biscuits, snack bars, sweets, cakes or yoghurts that contain nuts.
- Boxes and cartons for junk modelling that have contained foods with nuts.

Please make sure that your child knows that they must never share food from their school or packed lunch with any other child.

Medicines

If your child has any allergies, is asthmatic, or has any other chronic condition, please let us know using the medical form in your pack. If your child develops any conditions that the school should be aware of, please see Mrs Freeman or Ms Gonzalez.

Medicine will be kept in school for two purposes only:

- 1. When administration is required regularly during the school day.
- 2. Where the pupil may require medication in an emergency situation.

Children who have any kind of medication in school, will need a Health Care Plan. This will be discussed with you if necessary.

Medication to be administered in school **must**:

- Be prescribed by the child's GP/Paediatrician.
- Be in the original container showing the child's name and dosage.

If your child needs to have medication kept in school, please see Mrs Freeman or Ms Gonzalez, who will give you a disclaimer form to complete and prepare a Health Care Plan for you to agree and sign

Medicines must be handed directly to a member of staff and not put in bookbags.

Antibiotics will only be given to a child in school by staff if they can't be administered before and after school and at bedtime, and this is at the discretion of Miss Sands. If this is the case, you will need to complete a disclaimer form before the school can administer antibiotics.

The school holds Paracetamol (Calpol) and Chlorphenamine (Piriton) which we can administer if you have completed the relevant form. We will always phone you before giving either of these to your child.

If there is anything else you would like to know, or think the school should know about your child's welfare in school, please contact either Mrs Freeman or Ms Gonzalez.

First Aid

Unfortunately, there may be occasions when your child hurts themselves or becomes unwell during the school day.

We have several fully qualified first aiders in school who hold either a First Aid at Work Certificate or Paediatric First Aid Certificate or, in some cases, both. Each reception class has their own first aider.

If your child is hurt or becomes unwell s/he will be dealt with by one of the first aiders. You will only be contacted if your child needs to go home or if further treatment is necessary. It is, therefore, essential that we have up-to date contact information for you. Any changes can be done either through Parentmail or in writing to the school office.

You will not get a note from school for a minor injury, such as grazes or scrapes, however you will always receive a note if your child has any type of head injury or a nose bleed.

Common Childhood Illnesses

For comprehensive advice on common childhood illnesses, please go to the <u>NHS</u> <u>Website</u> where you will find information about symptoms as well as advice on whether your child needs to stay off school and for how long. If you would like further advice, then speak to Mrs Freeman or Ms Gonzalez.

Head Lice

Occasionally there is an outbreak of head lice in school! These are not a serious health hazard but are unpleasant and highly contagious so we take steps to limit their spread. If it is found that a child has head lice, the whole class will receive a letter asking them to

check their child's head and administer the appropriate remedy (we will not name any child in these letters). Following these simple guidelines may help you avoid head lice:

- Brush/Comb your child's hair well twice a day, every day
- Tie and clip back long hair.

Children must come into school as soon as the first treatment has been applied.

Mrs Freeman and Ms Gonzalez are responsible for pupil welfare in school so if you have queries regarding allergies, medical issues and First Aid, please speak to them, or email <u>admin@gsis.barnetmail.net</u> and they will be able to help you.

Child Protection and Safeguarding

We take our responsibilities in this area extremely seriously.

We follow government policy for safer recruitment. All adults who work in school are cleared through the Disclosure Barring Service (DBS) and we ask for references, before they can start to work or volunteer. All our staff and governors receive regular training on child protection and safeguarding and we have a number of policies in the school that we adhere to in order to ensure the safety and well-being of all the children and staff in our school.

Miss Sands (Head Teacher) is the Designated Safeguarding Lead Miss Jowsey (Deputy Head Teacher) is also a Designated Safeguarding Lead Mrs El'Siwidy (Governor) is the Responsible Governor

All can be contacted via the school office (please email office@gsis.barnetmail.net).

If you are concerned about a child, you must inform the Designated Safeguarding Lead without delay.

Please click <u>here</u> to check our school website to read our "Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy" and our "Recruitment Policy" and "Online Safety Policy"

General Safety and Security

Site security

We have security gates for entry into the front playground and an entry phone system for access to the school building.

The gates are open during normal arrival/collection times at the beginning and end of the school day. If you need to access the school site at any other time, please press the "Infant" buzzer which links to the school office and come to reception at the main Infant School entrance (right hand side of the building).

To access the building please firmly press the "Infant" buzzer located on the left hand side of the main door. Please note, the door cannot be opened unless you press this buzzer.

Parking and Safety

Traffic and parking around the school can present a serious safety hazard for children.

We ask all parents to drive and park responsibly in the local area:

- NEVER drive up/park or turn on Childs Way at any time.
- Do not block the slip road off Willifield Green.
- Follow the parking restriction notices in the area.

Childs Way is pedestrian and cycle access only from 8.30 to 9.30am and between 2.45 and 3.45pm. There is also no stopping on Child's Way from 8am to 9.30am and from 2.45pm to 4.15pm. There is Barnet CCTV in operation, monitoring Childs Way - you will get a fine if you use this road at school drop-off and pick-up times.

There is also a Controlled Parking Zone in the area immediately around school with residents only parking between 1.00 – 2.00pm.

Please note that the school is within the ULEZ which starts at the North Circular Road

The school car park is strictly for staff use, and should not be used by parents at any time.

Online-Safety

To support the curriculum, we use various resources including computers, iPads and some internet based software packages.

Online safety is, of course, of primary concern, and the school has very clear, and strictly enforced, policies in relation to child protection and safeguarding of children and online safety. Only suitable sites are accessible in school and use of computers and the internet are well supervised.

All parents and staff are expected to sign an Acceptable Use Agreement, committing to safe use of technology.

Photographs of children

In school we regularly take photographs of the children for recording activities within school, book making, display, celebration and record keeping.

In addition, we may take photos for publicity, newsletters, press releases and for use on our website. When your child joins the school we ask for your permission to take and use their photograph for these purposes. Your child's image will not be used outside the school unless you have given specific permission.

We have a secure section of the website, which only current parents, staff and governors have access to. We will ask permission separately for the open school website and the secure area.

Website Policy (including use of photographs)

We like our website to reflect the children in our school, and include photographs of the children at work and play. We adhere strictly to the following policy:

- Children's names will be published as their first name only or, if required, first name and last name initial.
- Images of children will not be labelled with their names.
- Children will only be shown in photos where they are suitably dressed.
- Personal details of children, staff and governors, such as home addresses, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses, will not be released via the website or school e-mail.
- Images of children may remain on the school website after they have left school. Parents have the right to ask us to remove these if they would prefer.

Parent photos

Parents are only permitted to take photos in the school hall during assemblies or performances, but these should be taken discretely and not disruptive of the occasion or intrusive for other users of the space.

Official School Photos

Twice a year a professional photographer comes into school to take the official individual and class photographs, which you can purchase. Please tick the consent form so your child is included in the class photograph.

Use of mobile phones

For all children's safety we ask you to turn off mobile phones or similar in and around the school building, unless you are using it to take photographs in an assembly (see above), but they must be set to silent.

Hot Drinks

Adults are not permitted to carry hot drinks through the school for health and safety reasons.

Food and Drink in School

After their initial induction, children will start to stay for lunch

Hot Lunch

All children are entitled to a free hot lunch in school every day and there are always two options, vegetarian and non-vegetarian, together with a varied salad bar, dessert, fruit or cheese and biscuits.

The meals are prepared by Barnet Catering in our own kitchen on site and are designed to meet the nutritional needs of growing children. No pork, shell fish or nut products are used, and we serve halal meat. Menus are on a 3 week cycle and can be viewed on the school website <u>here</u>

If your child has an allergy/intolerance to any food, and you want them to have a hot lunch, they will need to have a personal menu drawn up. If this is the case, please see Mrs Freeman and Ms Gonzalez as soon as possible for the forms to be completed. Your child will need to bring a packed lunch until the new menu arrives (this can take up to 3-4 weeks).

Packed Lunch

If you prefer, you can send in a packed lunch from home for your child. This may consist of a sandwich, a piece of fruit and/or a yoghurt, for example. Please <u>do not</u> send in 'treats' in the form of sweets or chocolate bars, and please do not send any nut products. Grapes must be cut in half lengthways, to prevent choking. Packed lunches should be in a box or bag with the child's name clearly showing. If any cutlery is needed it should be provided in the lunch box.

Snack

We provide children with a daily mid-morning snack of a piece of fruit. No other snack is needed, unless your child attends a club after school. These after school clubs only last for an hour and your child may bring one item for a snack (preferably a piece of fruit), and nothing more.

Water

Please send your child in with a water bottle each day. Water bottles should be no bigger than 300ml and should be labelled with your child's name. Suitable bottles can be purchased from the uniform supplier, Uniform4Kids.

Water is freely available in classrooms and throughout the school, to refill bottles.

Reception Year Milk

Reception Year children under 5 years old are entitled to free milk provided by the government.

They can continue to receive subsidised milk in reception, after their fifth birthday, which costs parents approximately 24p per day.

We use a company called Coolmilk to run the scheme – If you would like your reception year child to receive a small carton of semi skimmed milk each day please go to <u>www.coolmilk.com</u> for further information and to register.

We only receive milk for those who have registered and are on the list provided by Coolmilk, so it is important to put your child's correct start date on the form, to ensure milk will arrive at school for their first day (please ensure this is their correct start date so it doesn't arrive too early or too late!)

Free milk will be provided for registered children until the Friday before their 5th birthday. Three weeks before their birthday, you will receive a payment request. If you want your child to continue to have milk after their 5th birthday, just make a payment.

If you do not want your child to have milk after their 5th birthday, you don't need to do anything, it will automatically stop.

Please note if you order after your child has started school, orders received after Tuesday in any week will be processed the following week)

There is no reason for a child to bring any other food or drink into school.

Please do not bring in any birthday 'treats' but, if you would like to mark the event, we have a selection of books which you can purchase for the classroom. Please see the school office.

Free School Meals & Pupil Premium

All infant school aged children are entitled to a free school lunch under the Universal Free School Lunch Scheme (UIFSM). Since the pandemic and the current cost-of-living crisis, children who are eligible for the Free School Meal Benefit have also been receiving vouchers from the government to support them through the period.

Children who are entitled to Free School Meals (or who have been entitled to this previously) are eligible for Pupil Premium funding. This is used by the school to fund valuable support like additional learning support or interventions, additional teaching staff or after school activities (please see our website for full details of how we currently spend our Pupil Premium funding).

With the introduction of Universal Credit, the government has changed the regulations regarding Free School Meal eligibility to ensure that families don't lose out on this benefit during the transition period. As a result, if your child is eligible for free school meals, they'll remain eligible until they finish the phase of schooling (primary or secondary) they're in on 31 March 2025.

Your child may be eligible for the free school meal benefit if they live with you and if you get any of the following:

- Income Support
- Income-based Jobseeker's Allowance
- Income-related Employment and Support Allowance
- Support under Part VI of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999
- The guaranteed element of Pension Credit
- Child Tax Credit (provided you're not also entitled to Working Tax Credit and have an annual gross income of no more than £16,190)
- Working Tax Credit run-on paid for 4 weeks after you stop qualifying for Working Tax Credit
- Universal Credit if you apply on or after 1 April 2018 your household income must be less than £7,400 a year (after tax and not including any benefits you get)

Children who get paid these benefits directly, instead of through a parent or guardian, can also get free school meals.

If you fit any of the above criteria and therefore think you may be eligible, then you can check by going online to <u>https://pps.lgfl.org.uk/</u> and clicking on "Check Eligibility".

We urge parents to either register for the check, or ask the school to do so on their behalf, even if you aren't currently eligible. The school carries out monthly rechecks, and as circumstances can change, the recheck will ensure you get your entitlement as early as possible – and it lasts until the end of the junior school even if you are only eligible for one month.

You will need a USO Account. If you applied to our school through e-admissions you will already have one of these and can use the same user name and password. Everyone else can set up a new account, and the system will guide you through the process.

Through your USO Account, you can then link all your children to the account (regardless of which school they go to). Alternatively, if you work in another LGfL School you can use your normal USO login and again link your children.

Once checked, the school will then be able to see your status, and will add your name to the list of those eligible. As a thank you for taking the time to make the check, LGFL (London Grid for Learning) are offering free Antivirus software to use at home, regardless of the outcome.

If you have any problems with the process, please use the FAQ section of the LGfL website in the first instance, as this will answer any questions you may have.

If you are unable to complete the check online or if you're not sure whether you receive one of the listed benefits, or what your household income is, but you would still like us to check whether your child is eligible for free school meals, please complete the ParentMail form provided and we will do the check for you.

Thank you for your support and for helping to make sure the school receives as much funding as possible, to give every pupil the additional support and education they deserve.

Childcare and After-School clubs

Garden Suburb Infant and Junior Schools provide extended childcare through an external provider, "Funtime".

- <u>Breakfast Club</u> takes children from 7.50am and then takes them to class at 8.45am. Breakfast club costs £4.00 per session.
- <u>After-School Club</u> collects children from the playground at 3.15pm and they can stay until 5.50pm. After-School Club costs £10 per session.
- The After-School Club also does shorter sessions; Up to 4.30pm costs £5.00.
- Please note that late pick up incurs a fee of £3 per child for every five minutes late.
- <u>Holiday Club</u> runs through some of the school holidays from 8.30am until 5.50pm for £30 per day or £20 for half day.

Please telephone Funtime on 07506 030 037 directly, email <u>shaz.funtime@outlook.com</u> or go to the club in the dining room so that the team can ensure you have all the information required, collect an application form, and to introduce your child to the staff.

For Years One and Two, there are several after school activity clubs which are available in the school hall/playground. Full details of these clubs will be circulated to parents prior to booking, and will be set out on the school website, but the after school provision includes:

- Drama
- Chess
- Dance
- Gymnastics
- Multi Sports
- Football
- Taekwondo
- Djembe Drumming

Uniform and Dress code

Our children wear a school uniform, as it gives them a sense of belonging to the school community. Our uniform colours are yellow and navy blue.

It is not compulsory to wear items with the school logo, although we do encourage this. Items with the logo are only available from our supplier Uniform4Kids who are based on the Finchley Road in Temple Fortune or online at www.uniform4kids.com. Purchasing uniform via Uniform4Kids helps to raise funds for the school as the supplier donates a percentage of each sale to the school. A current price list, and other information is available on the school website, please click <u>HERE</u> for details.

The day to day uniform consists of the following items (those marked with an asterisk have the school logo):

Тор	Yellow short sleeved polo shirt*
Jumper	Navy blue sweatshirt* Navy blue cardigan* Navy blue full zip sweatshirt* Navy blue jumper
Trousers	Navy blue joggers (which can also be worn on PE days) Navy blue shorts Navy blue trousers
Dress/Skirt	Blue/Yellow check print dress Navy blue skirt Navy blue pinafore dress

Please note jeans are not allowed, and all sweatshirts/cardigans/jumpers should be navy blue. No coloured hoodies/sweatshirts should be worn indoors.

Footwear

Footwear should be sensible and comfortable (black or brown) – the children must be able to put them on without adult assistance (laces only if they can tie their own). Open toed sandals can be worn in the summer, but <u>only</u> if worn with socks. Knee high fashion boots are not acceptable for daily wear. Big boots (e.g. knee high, moon or wellies) should not be worn all day – please send in a change of shoes.

The PE Kit consists of:

Yellow short sleeved t-shirt* Navy Blue shorts (if the weather is warm) Navy Blue joggers Trainers (preferably black)

The PE Kit (these are available from Uniform4Kids) should be worn to school on the days that your child has PE. You will be informed of your child's PE days in September.

Spare clothes:

Children will need a spare set of clothes to bring into school which should be in a drawstring school bag available from Uniform4kids.

Outdoor Wear:

As the children spend a lot of time outside, a suitable coat for outdoor play must be provided – please ensure it is warm and ideally waterproof with a hood.

There are also sun hats with the school logo available for the summer. Although you are not required to purchase a sun hat with a logo, we strongly advise that all children have summer hats for when the sun is hot as there is limited shade in the playground.

Book Bag

In order to take books home, your child requires a suitable bag. The uniform company supply designated "**Book Bags**" that are clearly marked with the school name and have a label for your child's name that fit nicely into their drawers. They are sturdy and can be carried across the shoulder/body and have reflective strips on them. Book Bags can have <u>one</u> small key ring put on them to identify them (as well as having their name) but no more! *Please do not use a back pack as they do not fit into the drawers and take up a lot of space*!

Second Hand Uniform

The PTA hold regular second hand uniform sales throughout the year, which recycles old uniform (in good condition!) and gives the opportunity to purchase uniform at a much reduced price.

If you have difficulties with the cost of purchasing your child's uniform, please come to the school office for confidential advice.

ALL ITEMS SHOULD BE CLEARLY MARKED WITH YOUR CHILD'S NAME

Personalised labels are available from our uniform supplier, and many other companies, to ensure all items are labelled correctly.

Our PTA have arranged a special offer with the online supplier STIKINS who give a donation to the School PTA for every order made. They provide:

- Stick-on name labels for clothes
- No sewing or ironing needed
- One pack of sticky name labels for clothes, shoes, & lunchboxes

To make an order just go to <u>www.stikins.co.uk</u> and remember to pop in our school's code 7728 in the School Fundraising Number box. The school gets a donation for every Stikins product you buy using this code.

Jewellery

Children should not wear jewellery for health and safety reasons. If your child has pierced ears, small stud earrings are suitable. Bangles, bracelets, rings and necklaces are not appropriate and should not be worn

Hair

Long hair should be securely tied back in order to avoid accidents on apparatus and reduce the transmission of head lice. Hair bands should be simple and not ornately decorated (such as large bows).

All items of school clothing, including PE Kit and bags should be clearly marked with the child's name so lost items can be returned to their owner. Items which are not labelled are put in the lost property and unclaimed items will be disposed of at the end of each half term.

Parent Teacher Association (PTA)

Garden Suburb Infant School is most fortunate in having an active and enthusiastic Parent Teacher Association who help to raise additional funds for the school.

In past years, Garden Suburb Infant School PTA has organised events for parents and children, which have included Cake Sales, Seasonal Fair, Treasure Hunt, School Disco, Summer Camp and an International Food Fair.

As well as being vital fundraisers for the school, these events are also good ways for you to get to know other parents and families in school.

What do we do with the money? In the past few years, money raised by the PTA has funded: playground resurfacing and playground markings; ICT equipment including Interactive Whiteboards; redecorating and refitting our school hall, including audio/visual equipment.

Gift Aid Scheme

This scheme is a voluntary donation scheme and donations can be made online through Parentmail – don't forget to tick the gift aid box so we can claim the tax from the government. Funding from the Gift Aid Scheme enables us to fund visiting artists, and workshops for the children to enjoy, without needing to charge families to take part, as well as enhancements to the school environment and resources

All parents are automatically members of the PTA and we look forward to your support in attending and organising future events. Do not hesitate to share your ideas with us!

Contact Details

Head Teacher: Miss Sarah Sands Deputy Head Teacher: Miss Sarah Jowsey Special Needs Coordinator (SENCo) and Inclusion: Mrs Biljana Elia

School Business Manager: Mrs Alexia Dobinson Pastoral Support Officers: Mrs Susan Freeman & Ms Alejandra Gonzalez

Telephone: 020 8455 8198

(Option 1 for Pastoral Support, Option 2 for Business Manager)

Medical/Attendance/Pastoral Support Email: admin@gsis.barnetmail.net

(For all correspondence regarding absence, late arrivals, change of pick up, medical and general pupil welfare – this is the main email address for queries about pupils)

Business Manager Email: office@gsis.barnetmail.net

(For general enquiries, admissions, finance and to contact other members of staff including the Head Teacher and Deputy Head Teacher)

SENCo Email: senco@gsis.barnetmail.net

(To contact our special educational needs coordinator (SENCo))

Website: www.gardensuburbschools.co.uk

Address: Garden Suburb Infant School Childs Way London NW11 6XU

